
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

III. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES – AUGUST 2, 2018

IV. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA

V. NEW BUSINESS
A. WATS 2019 Membership Dues
B. Financials, Approve Disbursements from August 1, 2018 through August 31, 2018
C. Department of Treasury Request for Improvement of Deficiencies & Corrective 

Action Plan
D. PA 116 Application
E. River Raisin Watershed Council Delegate Appointment
F. Power Washing Proposals for Town Hall
G. Request to Place Headstone Marker in Bridgewater Center Cemetery

VI. REPORTS & CORRESPONDANCE
A. Public Safety Report – Written report from Sheriff’s Department
B. Supervisor’s Report 
C. Assessor’s Report
D. Clerk’s Report
E. Treasurer’s Report
F. Trustees’ Report
G. Zoning Administrator’s Report – Written report from Rodney Nanney
H. Planning Commission Report – Minutes included in Board packet
I. Farmland Preservation Board Report – Minutes included in Board packet.

VII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 2-Aug-18  Page 1 of 3 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

2-Aug-18 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:02 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

at Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 

Present: Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee McQueer; Trustee Oliver, Trustee Wharam 

Absent: None 

Citizen attendance: 4 

 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• Motion to approve the 7-Jun-18 meeting minutes as amended – Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver;  

vote – unanimous 

 

IV. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 

• Motion to approve the agenda as amended – Mr. Oliver; support –Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous 

 

V. PRESENTATION OF 2018 AUDIT – Brent D. Shea, CPA 

• The township received a non-qualified ranking, the best possible 

• Mr. Shea reviewed key points of the audit 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Financials & Approve Disbursements  

• Disbursements from 1-Jun-18 through 30-Jun-18 of $11,095.28 for general operations and $5,376.57 for 

sewer; for a total of $16,471.85   

• Disbursements from 1-Jul-18 through 31-Jul-18of $ $21,331.66 for general operations and $3,668.25 for 

sewer; for a total of $24,999.91 

• Motion to approve disbursements of a total of $41,471.76 for 1-Jun-18 → 31-Jul-18 Ms. Fromhart; 

support- Mr. Faust; vote - unanimous  

 

B. Holy Trinity Romanian Orthodox Monastery - Transient & Amusement Enterprises  

• This is a fund raiser for repair of the chapel 

• Motion to accept the application for administrative action by the Zoning Administrator per  

Section 6.34 - Mr. Oliver, support – Ms. McQueer; vote - unanimous 

 

C. Plumbing Proposals for Outdoor Spigots 

• Ms. Fromhart talked to about five potential plumbers 

• Received two proposals 

• Motion to approve Hagen Plumbing to install two outdoor frost-free spigots – Mr. Oliver;  

support – Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous 

 

D. Proposed Election Workers Pay Rate Increase 

• Mr. Wharam presented county wide election worker pay rates 

• Motion to accept suggested rates for the chairperson at $13.00/hr.; co-chair at $12.50/hr.; inspector at 

$12.00/hr. – Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver; vote – unanimous 

 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 2-Aug-18  Page 2 of 3 

E. Compensation Commission Discussion 

• Ms. Fromhart is suggesting that we adopt an ordinance to form a compensation commission 

• Information regarding this was supplied in the board packet 

 

F. Website Management Discussion 

• Ms. Fromhart asked about updating the web site 

• Mr. Wharam stated that chairs and secretaries to send agendas and minutes in.  He will send out an  

e-mail to remind everyone. 

 

VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Public Safety Report 

• Report received and is on record 

 

B. Supervisor’s Report 

• Rustic Glen withdrew their property tax appeal 

• Dr. Samuels complaint filed, no response was received 

• The Bridgewater Commons road is complete 

• Meet with WCRC new director talked about Hogan Rd. culvert, Bartlett Rd. 

• Board of Decision on Bridgewater Tile; 2-1 to start the feasibility study 

• Met with CCI; informed them that they were approved with contingencies 

 

C. Assessor’s Report 

• Ms. Rider submitted a written report to the board and it is on record 

 

D. Clerk’s Report 

• Held the Public Accuracy Test 1-Aug-18, all went well 

• Preparing for 7-Aug-18 election 

 

E. Treasurer’s Report  

• Taxes coming in rapidly 

 

F. Trustees’ Report 

• Trustee Faust: 

o Alarm panel at Bridgewater Bank is inside; should be outside 

 

• Trustee Oliver: 

o Nothing 

 

G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 

• Mr. Nanney submitted a written report to the board and it is on record 

 

H. Planning Commission 

• Approved application for SLU Barbu Event Barn; need a final site plan 

 

I. Farmland Preservation Board Report 

• No meeting 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 2-Aug-18  Page 3 of 3 

VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 8:58  p.m. 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 7-Jun-18  Page 1 of 3 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

7-Jun-18 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:00 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance at 

Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 

Present: Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee Oliver, Trustee McQueer; Trustee Wharam 

Absent: None 

Citizen attendance: 14 

 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• Todd Crane – of Gerken Materials; commented about the roof over the fuel tank; it is on the Gerken 

property which is under the consent judgement; a roof over a fuel tank is only mentioned in Ordinance 

59 

• Ron Rab – commenting about poor condition of Bemis Road 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• Motion to approve the 3-May-18 meeting minutes as amended – Mr. Faust; support – Mr. Oliver;  

vote – unanimous 

 

IV. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 

• Motion to approve the agenda as amended – Mr. Oliver; support – Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous 

 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Michigan Ave. Property Junk Ordinance Enforcement Action 

• Mr. Nanney gave a short description of the situation at 12460 E. Michigan Ave 

• Several pictures were provided 

• Mr. Nanney issued three citations; one of which was paid, two were not paid 

• Mr. Nanney recommends turning over to township attorney, Mr. Lucas 

• The Civil Infraction Bureau Manager was never contacted by Dr. Samuels for the last two civil 

infractions  

• Mr. Lucas described the two options available to the township 

o District court 

▪ This would be a civil infraction 

▪ Is This would be the least expensive 

▪ Would just a preponderance of the evidence 

o Circuit court 

▪ This would be a civil infraction 

▪ Is would be the most effective 

▪ Can get authority to clean the property 

▪ Could sell items to help recoup the cost 

• Can get an administrative search warrant 

• All costs are a lien on the property and the responsibility of the owner 

• If the property is cleaned up; the law suit goes away; the idea is to get compliance 

• Dr. Samuels gave a short defense of what he has done 

• Motion to authorize the township attorney to file an action in Washtenaw County Circuit Court after  

21-Jun-18, to abate the nuisance on the Samuels property, if the property is not brought into compliance 

with all applicable ordinances by that date and that Dr. Samuels allow the township zoning administrator 

immediate access to the property for inspection purposes - Ms. Fromhart; support – Mr. Oliver; 

• Trustee Faust - yes  Trustee Fromhart - yes Trustee Oliver – yes 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 7-Jun-18  Page 2 of 3 

• Trustee McQueer - yes  Trustee Wharam - yes 

 

B. Capital Improvement Planning Discussion 

• According to the planning commission ordinance, the supervisor must put together the capital 

improvements plan 

• Could be a simple spreadsheet showing the major expenditures and what money is being put aside 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. MTA Membership Dues 2018-2019 

• Motion to renew MTA membership and to pay the fee of $16,02.08 – Ms. McQueer;  

support – Mr. Oliver; vote -unanimous 

 

B. Financials, Approve Disbursements from 1-May-18 through 31-May -18 

• Motion to approve disbursements of $17,108.02 for general operations and $6971.36 for sewer; for a 

total of $24,079.38 - Ms. Fromhart; support – Mr. Oliver; vote – unanimous 

• Motion to authorize payment of standard bills due in June in July - Mr. Faust; support – Mr. Oliver;  

vote – unanimous 

 

C. ZBA Appointment 

• Motion to recommend Mr. Horney to ZBA until 31-Dec-19 – Ms. Fromhart; support - Mr. Oliver; 

• Trustee Faust - yes  Trustee Fromhart - yes Trustee Oliver – yes 

• Trustee McQueer - yes  Trustee Wharam - yes 

 

D. Rustic Glen Golf Club LLC, taxes  

• Ms. Fromhart met with Dave Hodges of Rustic Glen but never heard back 

• Ms. Rider informed Rustic Glen that there is no July meeting 

• This is Rustic Glen’s the third appeal 

• Motion to reject proposed settlement of $400K TCV from Rustic Glen – Mr. Oliver;  

support – Ms. McQueer; 

• Trustee Faust - yes  Trustee Fromhart - yes Trustee Oliver – yes 

• Trustee McQueer - yes  Trustee Wharam - yes 

 

VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Public Safety Report 

• Report received and is on record 

 

B. Supervisor’s Report 

• Asked for 3rd brining; WCRC refused due to lack of resources 

• Bridgewater drain; starting on emergency repairs; the citizens have filed a petition to build the drain; 

township will have to pay about $300K 

• Sewer plant violations were listed 

• Discussion on the effort at state level to reform assessing 

• RTA proposing a mileage 

• Motion to have supervisor send a letter of support to Senator Hune & Natural Resource Committee – 

Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver; vote - unanimous 

• Soil erosion; a bill has been introduced 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 7-Jun-18  Page 3 of 3 

• There is a bill at the state level that would prohibit regulation against event barns 

 

C. Assessor’s Report 

• Ms. Rider submitted a written report to the board and it is on record 

 

D. Clerk’s Report 

• MISS DIG rate increase 

• McCollum Road between Braun Road and Burmeister Road for bridge repair; expected completion is 

early July 2018 

• Would like to raise election workers pay 

 

E. Treasurer’s Report  

• Ms. McQueer submitted a written report to the board and it is on record 

 

F. Trustees’ Report 

• Trustee Faust: 

o Talked to Mr. Nelson about moving grinder; Mr. Faust said he would have to pay; Mr. Nelson will 

not pay 

o CCI Excavating would like to be able to install grinder pumps 

o Motion to approve CCI Excavating as an approved contractor for grinder pump installation 

contingent upon proof of credentials; township must still inspect work – Ms. Fromhart;  

support – Mr. Oliver; vote - unanimous 

 

• Trustee Oliver: 

o Talked to WCRC re: Austin Rd. 

o Talked to Mr. Roarck Freeman re: roads; bad all over the county 

o Have a plumbing inspector now 

 

G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 

• Mr. Nanney submitted a written report to the board and it is on record 

 

H. Planning Commission 

• Meeting minutes were submitted and are on record 

 

I. Farmland Preservation Board Report 

• Meeting minutes were submitted and are on record 

 

VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• Commented on dogs barking at Nancy Hebb; informed to contact Mr. Nanney 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 9:28 p.m. 





 Aug 25, 2018

 Accrual Basis
 Bridgewater Township

 Monthly Expenses
 August 2018Type Date Check # Name Split Amount

Aug 18

Bill 07/01/2018 9607 Beckett & Raeder Due to GS Materials MEL Exp App 70.00

Bill 08/01/2018 9608 BS&A -SPLIT- 1,111.00 Clerk:

Bill 08/02/2018 9609 Calvin Messing 5400727 · Planning comm. wage & expense 107.37

Bill 08/01/2018 EFT Cardmember Service 2050 · Comerica - Clerk/Treasurer 1,252.38 Treasurer:

Bill 08/25/2018 9624 Clayton and Mary Rider Assessing Service -SPLIT- 1,825.00

Bill 08/13/2018 EFT Consumers Energy 5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 15.01

Bill 08/29/2018 EFT Detroit Edison Company - Hall 5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 88.48

Bill 08/10/2018 EFT Detroit Edison Company - Street Lights 5440852 · Street lighting 289.41

Bill 08/22/2018 EFT Detroit Edison Company - Street Lights 5440852 · Street lighting 580.84

Bill 08/24/2018 9610 Donald N. Pennington -SPLIT- 1,278.75

Bill 08/13/2018 EFT Frontier 5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 98.43

Bill 08/16/2018 9611 Jon Way -SPLIT- 345.00

Bill 08/16/2018 9612 Laurie Fromhart 5171727 · Supervisor Expense 52.65

Bill 08/21/2018 9613 Lucas Law, PC -SPLIT- 823.70

Bill 08/02/2018 9614 Manchester Mirror 5191727 · Election expense 79.80

Bill 06/30/2018 9615 Manchester Township 5339727 · Fire protection billing expense 20,446.84

Bill 08/22/2018 9616 Michelle McQueer 5253727 · Treasurer supplies & expenses 639.29

Bill 08/18/2018 EFT Paychex -SPLIT- 6,440.05

Bill 08/31/2018 EFT Paychex_fees 5215727 · Clerk supplies & expense 98.88

Bill 08/15/2018 9617 Reau & Associates, P.C. 5215727 · Clerk supplies & expense 75.00

Bill 08/10/2018 9618 Shea Tax Consulting, Inc. 5173802 · Audit fees 50.00

Bill 08/17/2018 9619 Susan Ahrens 5191727 · Election expense 98.85

Bill 08/04/2018 9619 Susan Ahrens 5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 75.00

Bill 06/27/2018 9620 The Sun Times 5191727 · Election expense 75.00

Bill 08/07/2018 9621 Tom Wharam 5191727 · Election expense 25.07

Bill 08/01/2018 9622 Village of Manchester -SPLIT- 200.00

Bill 08/24/2018 9623 Washtenaw County Road Commission 5440846 · Road Improvements 3,664.32

Aug 18 39,906.12

 Page 1 of 1



Apr '18 - Mar 19 Budget $ Over Budget

Income
Clean-up Day Grant 2,399 3,000 -601
Clean Up Donation 63
4402 · Property tax - operation 3,111 74,100 -70,989
4410 · Property Tax Adjustments 0 11 -11
4447 · Tax administration fee 1,633 29,300 -27,667
4448 · Tax collection fees 100 3,500 -3,400
4460 · Township permits 0 500 -500
4465 · Land division fees 700 500 200
4574 · Revenue sharing 42,983 137,216 -94,233
4600 · Collection Fee-Sewer Fund 0 1,400 -1,400
4601 · Fire charge collection 0 500 -500
4665 · Interest Income 54 1,800 -1,746
4671 · Other Income - Fund Balances 1,102
4672 · Other Income 0 1,000 -1,000
4675 · Metro Auth.-restricted to roads 3,208 3,300 -92

Total Income 55,354 256,127 -200,773

Gross Profit 55,354 256,127 -200,773

Expense
5101000 · Township Board

5101703 · Trustee salary 2,000 4,800 -2,800
5101727 · Township supplies & expenses 32 600 -568
5101770 · Conferences & Training 0 500 -500

Total 5101000 · Township Board 2,032 5,900 -3,868

5171000 · Supervisor
5171703 · Supervisor Salary 6,503 15,607 -9,104
5171727 · Supervisor Expense 86 1,000 -914
5209000 · Assessor

5209705 · Board of Review expenses 0 1,155 -1,155
5209805 · Assessor Wages 8,625 20,700 -12,075
5209810 · Assessor Expense 1,528 2,800 -1,272
5209000 · Assessor - Other 100

Total 5209000 · Assessor 10,253 24,655 -14,402

Total 5171000 · Supervisor 16,842 41,262 -24,420

5173000 · Other General Government
Uncollectable Debt 8,020
5173715 · Social Security 1,966 5,000 -3,034
5173801 · Attorney & Consulting Expenses 2,394 5,000 -2,606
5173802 · Audit fees 5,098 3,300 1,798
5173811 · Membership fees & dues 1,820 2,000 -180
5173890 · Newsletter (non-recyc) 0 100 -100
5173895 · Website Administrator 500 500 0
5173912 · Insurance & Bonds 5,440 5,500 -60
5173955 · Miscellaneous 20 0 20

Total 5173000 · Other General Government 25,257 21,400 3,857

5215700 · Clerk
5173900 · Printing & publishing 42 800 -758
5174810 · Deputy Clerk 594 1,000 -406
5191727 · Election expense 1,347 3,500 -2,153
5215703 · Clerk salary 6,756 16,214 -9,458
5215727 · Clerk supplies & expense 354 3,200 -2,846

Total 5215700 · Clerk 9,094 24,714 -15,620

5253700 · Treasurer
5253701 · Tax Collection Expense 528 2,500 -1,972
5253703 · Treasurer salary 7,340 17,615 -10,275
5253704 · Deputy Treasurer Wages 352 1,000 -648
5253727 · Treasurer supplies & expenses 396 2,000 -1,604

Total 5253700 · Treasurer 8,616 23,115 -14,499

Bridgewater Township
Aug 25, 2018 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2018 through March 2019

Page 1



 Aug 25, 2018

Accrual Basis
 Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation

 Monthly Expenses
August 2018

Type Date Check # Name Split Amount

Aug 18

Bill 08/01/2018 EFT DTE Energy Electricity 1,091.88 Clerk:

Bill 08/28/2018 EFT DTE Energy Electricity 1,757.68

Bill 07/30/2018 1318 Faust Sand & Gravel, Inc. Grinder Pump Repair Reimb 217.50 Treasurer:

Bill 07/20/2018 1319 Haviland -SPLIT- 672.40

Bill 08/16/2018 1320 Jon Way Building & Grounds Maintenance 165.00

Bill 07/31/2018 1321 USIC Locating Services, LLC Miss Dig Locator Service 190.98

Bill 08/01/2018 1322 Village of Manchester Plant Operator 2,600.00

Aug 18 6,695.44

 Page 1 of 1



Bond - Sewer Operation - Sewer TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Customer Finance Charge 0.00 -88.38 -88.38
Interest Income Master Account

Interest Income Checking 0.00 28.49 28.49

Total Interest Income Master Account 0.00 28.49 28.49

Miscellaneous Income 0.00 190.32 190.32
Operation Maintenance Income 0.00 41,400.00 41,400.00
Special Assessment Revenue 6,944.70 0.00 6,944.70

Total Income 6,944.70 41,530.43 48,475.13

Gross Profit 6,944.70 41,530.43 48,475.13

Expense
Collection System

Billing
Billing Clerk 0.00 -100.00 -100.00

Total Billing 0.00 -100.00 -100.00

Collection System Equip Repairs 0.00 217.50 217.50
Grinder Pump repairs 0.00 700.00 700.00
Miss Dig Locator Service 0.00 2,272.14 2,272.14

Total Collection System 0.00 3,089.64 3,089.64

Insurance 0.00 1,134.83 1,134.83
Treatment Plant

Building & Grounds Maintenance 0.00 635.00 635.00
Chemicals 0.00 1,943.40 1,943.40
Electricity 0.00 8,500.10 8,500.10
Phone Service 0.00 211.07 211.07
Plant Operator 0.00 13,000.00 13,000.00
Treatment Plant - Other 0.00 240.00 240.00

Total Treatment Plant 0.00 24,529.57 24,529.57

Total Expense 0.00 28,754.04 28,754.04

Net Ordinary Income 6,944.70 12,776.39 19,721.09

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Grinder Pump Repair Reimb 0.00 -217.50 -217.50

Total Other Income 0.00 -217.50 -217.50

Other Expense
Washtenaw Cty Debt Svc

Interest 1,762.50 0.00 1,762.50
Principal 35,250.00 0.00 35,250.00

Total Washtenaw Cty Debt Svc 37,012.50 0.00 37,012.50

Total Other Expense 37,012.50 0.00 37,012.50

Net Other Income -37,012.50 -217.50 -37,230.00

Net Income -30,067.80 12,558.89 -17,508.91

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Aug 25, 2018 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis April 2018 through March 2019

Page 1



Apr '18 - Mar 19 Budget $ Over Budget

5265000 · Building & Grounds
5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 2,584 6,000 -3,416
5265925 · Cemetery care 1,292 2,500 -1,208
5265980 · Building improvement & equipmen 119 2,000 -1,881

Total 5265000 · Building & Grounds 3,996 10,500 -6,504

5301800 · Public Safety
5339727 · Fire protection billing expense 33,447 65,000 -31,553

Total 5301800 · Public Safety 33,447 65,000 -31,553

5400700 · Planning & zoning
5400701 · Planning

5400727 · Planning comm. wage & expense 2,547 4,200 -1,653
5400803 · Planning consultant - on-going 2,040 9,000 -6,960
5400806 · Farmland PB Consultant 0 500 -500
5411810 · Conferences & Training 370

Total 5400701 · Planning 4,957 13,700 -8,743

5410726 · Zoning
5410704 · Land Division Processing Fees 575 1,500 -925
5410727 · Zoning ad.wage & expense 3,100 7,500 -4,400
5411727 · Zon Bd of Appeals Expense 43 325 -283

Total 5410726 · Zoning 3,718 9,325 -5,608

Total 5400700 · Planning & zoning 8,675 23,025 -14,350

5440000 · Public works
5440846 · Road Improvements 6,075 30,000 -23,925
5440847 · Drains at large 0 4,500 -4,500
5440849 · Clean-up Day 2,399 3,200 -801
5440852 · Street lighting 1,820 3,500 -1,680

Total 5440000 · Public works 10,294 41,200 -30,906

Total Expense 118,252 256,116 -137,864

Net Income -62,898 11 -62,909

Bridgewater Township
Aug 25, 2018 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2018 through March 2019

Page 2



 

 

 
P.O. BOX 30728 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-8228 

www.michigan.gov/treasury • 517-373-3227 

RICK SNYDER 

GOVERNOR  

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 

LANSING  

NICK A. KHOURI 

STATE TREASURER 

 

August 23, 2018 
 
Request for Improvement 
of Deficiencies - 
Corrective Action Plan 
Fiscal Year: 2018 
Municipality Code: 811030 
Report ID Number: 81727 
 
 
Sent Via Email 
Bridgewater Township 
bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com 
 
Dear Governing Body: 
 
The Community Engagement and Finance Division has received the audit report for the 
fiscal year referenced above. It is the responsibility of this division to administer certain 
State statutes. Consequently, your audit has been reviewed to determine compliance 
with budgeting, accounting, auditing, and statutory compliance related activities. This 
review has identified issues that we believe need your attention. 
 
Please note the following issues corresponding to response(s) on the auditing 
procedures report: 
 

• Expenditures have exceeded revenues for the last three years.  Please provide 
an explanation for this trend. 

• CPA license number is invalid according to board of accountancy records.  The 
division will resolve with the firm. 

 
The matters described above are either violations of State statute or are deficiencies of 
the local unit that may impede the local unit's ability to comply with State statute. 
Therefore, please submit to us, within 30 days from the date of this letter, a detailed 
Corrective Action Plan to resolve the above-mentioned matters including other 
deficiencies noted in your audit report. Additional deficiencies in your report are usually 
found in the form of comments and recommendations located toward the end of the 
report. The plan should identify each Auditing Procedure Report question listed above, 
each additional deficiency, the corrective action to be taken, the supporting 
documentation requested, if any, and the date in which the action is to be implemented. 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/Treasury


Page 2 
 

 

 

Please submit your Corrective Action Plan by logging into the department’s online filing 
site at: Michigan Department of Treasury/online report. You must request local unit user 
access if one does not already exist.  
 
Failure to respond within 30 days or an inability to demonstrate that corrective action 
has been implemented may result in one or more of the following: 
 

• Denial of subsequent year qualified status under Public Act 34 of 2001, the 
Revised Municipal Finance Act (possibly preventing your municipality the ability 
to borrow money); 

• Subject the local unit to an audit and/or review performed by Department of 
Treasury auditors at the expense of the local unit. 

 
If you have any questions, contact the audit review staff at (517) 373-3227 (option 0) or 
email questions to LAFD_Audits@michigan.gov.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
Cary Jay Vaughn, CPA, CGFM  
Audit Manager 
Community Engagement and Finance Division 

 
 

https://treas-secure.state.mi.us/LAFDeform/TL41W71.aspx
mailto:LAFD_Audits@michigan.gov












































AAA Power Wash & Roof Cleaning Services
517-266-7545

aaapowerwashingservices@gmail.com

Estimate EST 5001591
NAME Bridgewater Township Hall

ADDRESS 10990 Clinton Rd
Manchester

PHONE 734-223-2766
EMAIL bridgewatertwpsupervisor@yahoo.com
DATE August 17, 2018

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QTY TOTAL

Exterior Wash
Low Pressure Soft Wash application and rinse: cleaning algae,
mildew, mold, dirt, dust and grime 

Soft wash includes siding, gutter faces, fascia, soffits, trim,
window frames, vents, etc. on all vertical surfaces

$385.00

Handicap Ramp Cleaning
•Application of emulsifying detergents and wood restoring
cleaners
•Moderate Power and Soft Washing
•Final Rinse

$114.00

SUBTOTAL $499.00

TOTAL $499.00

Upon arrival for services, please make sure to:
•Close all windows
•Put all vehicles in a closed garage or at least 50 ft from the property
•Inform washing team of any existing leaks on the property
•Turn on at least 1 outside water spigot or make arrangements for a water
source.

Page 1 of 2



 
Exterior wash example 

Page 2 of 2























1 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 

TOWNSHIP OF BRIDGEWATER, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, 
 Plaintiff, 
v  
JONATHAN SAMUELS 
 Defendant. 

 
File No. 18-723-CE 
 
Hon. David S. Swartz 

Frederick Lucas (P29074) 
LUCAS LAW, PC 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
7577 US 12, Ste A 
Onsted, MI 49265  
517-467-4000 
 
Jonathan Samuels 
In Pro Per 
12460 East Michigan Ave 
Clinton, MI 49236 

 

 
MOTION FOR SUMMARY DISPOSITION 

Plaintiff, Bridgewater Township (the Township), by its attorney, Frederick Lucas, 

pursuant to MCR 2.116(C)(10) moves this court for summary disposition granting to the 

Township a permanent injunction enjoining defendant, Jonathan Samuels from 

maintaining a nuisance on  her property in violation of the Bridgewater Township Storage 

and Disposal of Junk Ordinance (the Junk Ordinance), which has been adopted by the 

Township, and in support thereof states as follows: 

1. The Township filed suit against Samuels under the Junk Ordinance, seeking 

the removal or enclosure of the materials in violation of the statute on his property located 

at the structure located at 12460 East Michigan Avenue, Clinton, Michigan (the Property), 

based upon inspection by the Township Zoning Administrator, Rodney C. Nanney. 



2 

2. As noted in the attached affidavit of Rodney C. Nanney, the Property is in 

violation of the Junk Ordinance by virtue of the fact that refuse, waste, and junk has been 

allowed to accumulate and remain unenclosed on the Property. 

3. There are no genuine issues of material fact and the Township is entitled to 

relief as a matter of law. 

4. This motion is based upon the attached brief, the exhibits attached to the 

complaint and affidavit attached hereto. 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court enter judgment for the Township 

granting the relief requested in its verified complaint. 

Dated:  August 10, 2018 LUCAS LAW, PC 

 

  
Frederick Lucas 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

  



3 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 

TOWNSHIP OF BRIDGEWATER, 
a Michigan municipal corporation, 
 Plaintiff, 
v  
JONATHAN SAMUELS 
 Defendant. 

 
File No. 18-723-CE 
 
Hon. David S. Swartz 

Frederick Lucas (P29074) 
LUCAS LAW, PC 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
7577 US 12, Ste A 
Onsted, MI 49265  
517-467-4000 
 
Jonathan Samuels 
In Pro Per 
12460 East Michigan Ave 
Clinton, MI 49236 

 

 
BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF MOTION 

 
Facts 

 
Defendant, Jonathan Samuels (Samuels) is the owner of real property located at 

12460 East Michigan Avenue, Clinton, Michigan, 49236 (the Subject Property), located 

within the Township of Bridgewater (the Township). 

The Township adopted an ordinance to regulate the storage and disposal of waste 

materials, junk, inoperable appliances and vehicles within the township (the Junk 

Ordinance). Under the Junk Ordinance, it is unlawful for a person “to store or maintain 

refuse, waste, junk, demolition materials, waste building materials, inoperable vehicle(s), 

inoperable equipment, non-functional house trailers(s), non-functional motor trailer(s) or 

parts from such vehicles, equipment or trailers on any area of public or private property 

that is not fully enclosed by a building or refuse container.” Exhibit A. 



4 

Following complaints regarding the condition of the Subject Property, the Township 

Zoning Administrator, Rodney C. Nanney, inspected the Subject Property and determined 

that Defendant is in violation of the Junk Ordinance by virtue of the fact that he has and 

is allowing refuse, waste, and junk to accumulate on the Subject Property which is not a 

fully enclosed building or refuse container and the Township initiated procedures to 

require Samuels to either remove or enclose the materials in violation of the Junk 

Ordinance. Affidavit of Rodney C. Nanney attached as Exhibit B. 

Samuels was repeatedly given notice of the violation, but no action has been taken 

to remedy the violations despite Samuels having been in communication with the 

Township regarding this matter as recently as June 7, 2018, when a final deadline of June 

22, 2018 was given to the Defendant. On June 22, 2018, another inspection of the Subject 

Property was conducted, and it was determined that the Subject Property was still in 

violation of the Junk Ordinance.  

Standard of Review 

MCR 2.116(C)(10) tests the factual basis underlying a plaintiff's claim. Velmer v 

Baraga Area Schools, 430 Mich 385, 424 NW2d 770 (1988).  A court reviewing a motion 

under MCR 2.116(C)(10) must consider the pleadings, affidavits, depositions, 

admissions, and any other evidence in favor of the party opposing the motion and grant 

the benefit of any reasonable doubt to the opposing party. Stevens v McLouth Steel, 433 

Mich 365, 446 NW2d 95 (1989). Nonetheless, when a partying moving for summary 

disposition comes forward with evidence supporting such a motion, it is incumbent on the 

opposing party to likewise present evidence to support its position. Young v Oakland 

General Hospital, 175 Mich App 132, 437 NW2d 321 (1989). 



5 

Argument 

The Township has presented evidence that the materials on the Subject Property 

fall under the categories of waste, refuse, and junk as defined in the ordinance. See 

attached exhibits and affidavit of the Township Zoning Administrator.. Samuels has had 

ample opportunity to clean or enclose the Subject Property, but to date nothing has been 

done to correct the Junk Ordinance violation found by the Township’s Zoning 

Administrator. Based upon the evidence presented to this court, there is no genuine issue 

of material fact that Defendant has and is allowing refuse, waste, and junk to accumulate 

on the Subject Property, which is a fully enclosed building or refuse container, in violation 

of the Junk Ordinance. 

For this reason, the Township asks that this Court enter judgment in its favor, find 

that Subject Property is in violation of the Junk Ordinance and grant the Township the 

following relief: 

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, Township of Bridgewater prays this court enter an order 

as follows: 

A.  Preliminarily and permanently enjoining defendant violating the provisions 

of the Junk Ordinance by either removing the offending materials from his property or 

enclosing those materials within a wholly enclosed building. 

B.  If defendant fails to bring the Property into complaint with this Court’s order 

within 14 days of its issuance, authorize the Township to enter onto the Property and 

clean the Property of all waste thereon by removing such items and either selling them or 

disposing them as waste, at the discretion of the Township.  

C. Hold defendant liable for the costs of cleanup of the Property. 



6 

D. Grant the Township its costs and actual attorney fees incurred in bringing 

this action. 

E. To secure payment by Defendant for the cost of cleanup of the Property 

and all costs and attorney fees, permit the Township to assess all such costs against the 

Property and permit the assessment be added to the tax roll.  

F. Grant the Township such other relief as this court may determine to be 

appropriate. 

Dated: August 10, 2018 LUCAS LAW, PC 

 

  
Frederick Lucas 
Attorney for Plaintiff 

















    WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 

 
TO: Washtenaw County Board of Road Commissioners 

FROM: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, P.E. 
 Managing Director 

SUBJECT: Staff Report  –  7-9-18 to 7-29-18 

DATE: August 7, 2018 

 
TOWNSHIP REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

MAINTENANCE 
Scraping of gravel roads and patching of paved roads were performed throughout the 
county. In addition, the following maintenance activities were performed in individual 
townships:   
 
ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Tree – N Dixboro Road 

 
AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Trees – McKean Road, Talladay Road, Willis Road 
 Gotts Court Limestone Resurfacing – 359 tons 
 Shoulder Maintenance – Willis Road 
 Tuttle Hill Road Limestone Resurfacing – 6,823 tons 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Trees – Allen Road 
 Limestone Patch – McCollum Road: 61 tons 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – W Austin Road 
 Roadside Debris – Sheridan Road 

 
DEXTER TOWNSHIP 
 Berming – Dexter-Pinckney Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – N Territorial Road 
 Limestone Patch – Wylie Road: 19 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 
 Shape and Brine Limestone Resurfacing Project – Lima Center Road 

 
FREEDOM TOWNSHIP 
 Gravel Patch – Bemis Road, Peckins Road, Wylie Road: 34 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

 
  



    WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 

 
TO: Washtenaw County Board of Road Commissioners 

FROM: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, P.E. 
 Managing Director 

SUBJECT: Staff Report  –  7-30-18 to 8-12-18 

DATE: August 21, 2018 

 
TOWNSHIP REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

MAINTENANCE 
Scraping of gravel roads and patching of paved roads were performed throughout the 
county. In addition, the following maintenance activities were performed in individual 
townships:   
 
ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Tree – Riverside Drive 

 
AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Tree – Bolla Road 
 Limestone Patch – Liss Road: 40 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 
 Tuttle Hill Road Limestone Resurfacing Project Final Grade 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Austin Road: 34 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

 
DEXTER TOWNSHIP 
 Gravel Patch Shoulders – Dexter-Pinckney Road, N Territorial Road: 4 tons 

 
FREEDOM TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Tree – Pleasant Lake Road 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Pleasant Lake Road: 29 tons 
 Primary Road Dust Control 

LIMA TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Trees – Luick Drive 
 Fallen Tree – Trinkle Road 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
  



    WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 

 
TO: Washtenaw County Board of County Road Commissioners 

FROM: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, P.E. 
 Managing Director 

SUBJECT: Staff Report  –  8-13-18 to 8-26-18 

DATE: September 4, 2018 

 
TOWNSHIP REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

MAINTENANCE 
Scraping of gravel roads and patching of paved roads were performed throughout the 
county. In addition, the following maintenance activities were performed in individual 
townships:   
 
ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Trees – Butler Road 
 Ditching – Butler Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Butler Road 
 Fallen Tree – Willis Road 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Allen Road, Sheridan Road, Willow Road 
 Fallen Tree – Logan Road, Wilbur Road 
 Gravel Patch – Burmeister Road: 11 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
DEXTER TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – N Territorial Road, Stofer Road 
 Limestone Patch – Riker Road: 16 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
LIMA TOWNSHIP 
 Local Road Dust Control 
 Township-wide Limestone Resurfacing – Freer Road, Guenther Road, Lima Center 

Road, Steinbach Road: 3,149 tons 
  



 

Monday, August 20, 2018  Page 1 of 2 
 

Bridgewater Township Farmland Preservation Board 
Meeting Minutes 8-20-2018 

 
I. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

18:35 
 
II. Roll Call 
 Present: Long, Scaturo, McQueer 
 Absent: Faust, Howard 
 
III. Citizen Participation 
 Barry Lonik of Treemore Ecology and Land Services, Inc. provided the farmland board 
with an update on the Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation Commission's decision to 
allocate miallge funding for long-term preserve stewardship and conservation easement 
monitoring. After that money is set aside, there will still be roughly $13 million available over 
the next three years for land acquisitions. There was also discussion about millage renewal and 
timing. Lonik offered the farmland board a proposal for services related to land preservation and 
outreach.  
 
IV. Review and Approve Agenda 
 McQueer asks to remove item A under Discussion Items and replace it with a discussion 
and review of Lonik’s proposal.  
 Motion to approve agenda as amended: Long 
 Second: Scaturo 
 
V. Old Business 

A. Approve June meeting minutes 
McQueer notes that Tom Wharam has asked we watermark future meeting minutes as 
“approved”. Scaturo asks that page numbers be added if more than one page. Also, Long 
notes that the meeting minutes should strike the name Deeleuw and simply state Hannah.  
Motion to approve as amended: McQueer 
Second: Long 

 
VI. Discussion Items  

A. Discussion of Lonik Proposal for Services 
 Lonik fielded several questions on details of the proposal, and the farmland board will 
take that information and share it with absent members at the next meeting in September.  
      B. Future meeting dates 
 The board discussed whether or not future meeting dates should be changed to every 
other month. Initial discussion was to continue with monthly meetings, but change to bi-monthly 



 

Monday, August 20, 2018  Page 2 of 2 
 

until there is a need for monthly meetings again – especially in the months leading up to the 
annual farmland preservation workshop. Discussion will continue with more members present at 
the next meeting.  
VII. Citizen Participation 
 McQueer noted that he had an informal discussion with a landowner in the township, and 
will contact her to follow up about a more formal sit down.  
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 Motion to adjourn: Scaturo 
 Second: McQueer 
 
 
 


	09062018 Bridgewater Twp Board of Trustees Agenda
	080218_minutes_draft
	060718_minutes_approved
	WATS Membership Renewal
	8110302018DeficLtr
	Shea Email Response re DeficLtr
	Wegner_PA116_app
	Kratz_RRWC_Letter_of_Resignation
	Kratz Resignation Email
	RRWC Delegate Form & Info
	AAA Power Wash Proposal
	Scrub a Home Power Washing Proposal
	Sachs Emails re Elard Kulenkamp Headstone Bridgewater Center Ce
	Bridgewater Twp v Samuels; Answer 2018.07.31
	Bridgewater Twp v Samuels; Motion and Brief for SD
	Bridgewater Twp v Samuels; NOH Motion for SD, POS signed 2018.08.24
	Notification_of_Necessity Bridgewater Village Tile
	Order_of_Necessity Bridgewater Village Tile
	Dumping at Riverbend Preserve
	Township Rpt_7-9 to 7-29
	TOWNSHIP REPORT

	Staff Rpt_7-30 to 8-12-18
	TOWNSHIP REPORT

	Bridgewater Township Farmland Preservation Board Meeting Minutes 8-20-2018 DRAFT
	Township Rpt_8-13 to 8-26-18.pdf
	TOWNSHIP REPORT




